Public Document Pack

Enterprise and Business Committee

Lleoliad: Cynulliad

Committee Room 3 - Senedd Cenedlaethol
Cymru

Dyddiad: National

22 September 2011 Assembly for
Wales

C7

| gael rhagor o wybodaeth, cysylltwch a:

Sian Phipps

Clerc y Pwyllgor

029 2089 8582
enterprise.committee@wales.gov.uk

Agenda

1. Apologies, Introductions and Substitutions

2. Ministerial Scrutiny Session : Regeneration ( 9:30 -10:15) (Pages 1 -
5)
Huw Lewis, Minister for Housing, Regeneration and Heritage
Richard Harris - Deputy Director Strategic Regeneration and Heads of the
Valleys
e Chris Warner - Head of Policy - Regeneration

3. Ministerial Scrutiny Session : European Programmes ( 10:15 -
11:00) (Pages 6 - 11)
e Alun Davies, Deputy Minister for Agriculture, Food, Fisheries and European
Programmes
e Damien O'Brien, WEFO Director
e Jane McMillan, Acting Director Programme Management and Finance Division,
WEFO

4. Ministerial Scrutiny Session : Business, Enterprise, Technology

and Science ( 11:00 - 12:00) (Pages 12 - 16)
e Edwina Hart, Minister for Business, Enterprise, Technology and Science

5. Papers to Note (Pages 17 - 55)
e Correspondence from Leighton Andrews, Minister for Education and Skills re



Enterprise and Business Committee meeting on 13 July 2011

e Correspondence from Carl Sargeant, Minister for Local Government and
Communities re Enterprise and Business Committee meeting on 13 July 2011



Agenda ltem 2

Enterprise and Business Committee
EBC(4)-02-11

Paper 1

Evidence from Huw Lewis, Minister for Housing, Regeneration and
Heritage

My Regeneration Priorities
1. Context

1.1 Regeneration is about people and places. Regeneration aims to make
sustainable places over the long term in order to improve the quality of life of
the people who live and work in and around those places.

1.2 The term regeneration covers a variety of activities, from sustaining
distinctiveness in physical renewal of urban spaces to improve economic
viability and address market failures, to working with people in their
communities to tackle underlying causes of deprivation. Physical regeneration
is often characterised as involving reversing or avoiding the decline of areas,
or biasing investment towards areas which are disadvantaged and would not
otherwise benefit from investment due to a combination of market failures.
Such activities take place all over Wales through different organisations and
partnerships.

1.3 The Welsh Government has a number of programmes that specifically aim
to support regeneration, from Communities First to the Rural Development
Plan. We also use investment across a range of departments to stimulate
regeneration.

2. Existing regeneration policy for my portfolio
2.1 In October 2010, the then One Wales Government published the

Framework for Regeneration Areas:
wales.gov.uk/docs/desh/publications/101018regenareasframeworken.pdf.

2.2 To support the implementation of the Framework, a National Regeneration
Panel was established. The Panel, which is chaired by Viv Sugar, comprises
the following organisations:

Welsh Government

Welsh Local Government Association
Welsh Social Enterprise Coalition
Wales Council for Voluntary Action
Wales Co-operative Centre

Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors
Regeneration Skills Collective Wales
Federation of Small Businesses
Community Housing Cymru

Page 1



e Groundwork Wales

2.3 The Framework remains Government policy, although it may in time be
superseded by future policy work. | have retained the National Regeneration
Panel and very much welcome its continuing input and advice.

2.4 The Government, and regeneration professions and organisations, also
benefit from the work of the Centre for Regeneration Excellence Wales
(CREW): www.regenwales.org. | am currently considering the most
appropriate way to take forward this work, beyond the existing funding
arrangements for CREW, which expire in March 2012.

3. Existing activity within my regeneration budget

3.1 The Framework for Regeneration Areas was a stocktake of the
Regeneration Areas approach, which was developed using the model of the
Heads of the Valleys Programme established in 2005. Regeneration Areas
aim to address inequalities experienced across geographical areas in Wales
by investing in places that are currently under-performing, both economically
and in terms of wellbeing, in order to raise their performance. By investing in
areas that are currently under-performing, the aim is to improve overall levels
of prosperity and wellbeing in Wales as a whole. It seeks to take advantage of
investment opportunities that will lead to sustainable development in urban
and rural hubs.

3.2 This approach is now being used in six more Regeneration Areas across
Wales: Aberystwyth, Barry, M6n a Menai, North Wales Coast, Swansea, and
Western Valleys.

3.3 In addition, the Department for Housing, Regeneration and Heritage also
supports the following organisations and partnerships engaged in
regeneration activity:

Newport Unlimited (www.newportunlimited.co.uk)

Cardiff Harbour Authority (www.cardiffharbour.com)

Valleys Regional Park (www.thevalleys.org.uk)

Coalfields Regeneration Trust (www.coalfields-regen.org.uk)
Groundwork Wales (www.wales.groundwork.org.uk)

3.4 | also have portfolio responsibility for the Regeneration Investment Fund
for Wales: www.rifw.co.uk.

4. Cross-cutting regeneration activity
4.1 Regeneration is cross-cutting and as such requires close collaboration

across Government portfolios and across the public, private and voluntary
sectors. Successful collaborations across Government and beyond include:

Page 2



¢ Investment in further education reconfiguration in the Heads of the
Valleys to create a landmark centres of learning in Merthyr Tydfil and
Ebbw Vale.

e The Heart and Soul Campaign — a common approach to place
marketing across the Valleys, which has already won three awards.

¢ The National Station Improvement Programme plus, using public
sector investment in Swansea Regeneration Area to enable a pan
Wales European-funded project worth £37m.

4.2 Through the creation of my portfolio, the Government has recognised the
particularly important role that both Housing and Heritage can play in
Regeneration. Housing capital investment, for example, has been a key driver
of renewal in deprived areas, in particular through efforts to meet the Welsh
Housing Quality Standard, and the quality of housing has a significant effect
on people’s mental and physical health outcomes. The historic environment
provides both economic assets (monuments that encourage tourism, for
example) and the distinctiveness that can help shape regeneration activity in
a particular area. And the arts and sport provide a range of community
development opportunities with economic and social benefits.

4.3 | am determined to make the most of the links between the three parts of
my portfolio, building on successes to date. These successes include:

Housing
¢ Investing £30m in a portfolio of home energy efficiency and renewable

energy schemes in Regeneration Areas to tackle fuel poverty and
reduce energy use, leading to a pan-Wales European-funded phase 2
project.

¢ Maximising the community benefits of housing investment, in terms of
targeted recruitment and training and local supply chain development,
leading to the creation of the Can Do toolkits.

The Historic Environment

e Using urban characterisation work on key settlements such as Merthyr
Tydfil to demonstrate the value of heritage and identify where it has a
positive role to play in regeneration that respects local distinctiveness.
Making the most of historic assets, such as the Castle and the Hafod
(Copperopolis) projects in Swansea.

Working with British Waterways and CREW to promote best practice
on the use of waterways heritage in regeneration that links people and
places.

e Levering in investment such as the Heritage Lottery Fund’s Townscape
Heritage Initiative (THI) to stimulate regeneration opportunities through
historic building conservation.

o Working with communities, heritage partners and the tourism sector to
connect individual sites with other heritage attractions and with the
local community and the surrounding area, as well as to link to broader
interpretive stories and themes.

Page 3



Libraries, Museums and Archives

Modernising public libraries to support services in deprived areas
through the Community Learning Libraries Capital Grant Programme.
Investing in museums to collect, reflect, care for and promote the
history and material culture of communities, providing a sense of place
and belonging as well as quality of life improvements

Relocation of Gwent Record Office (now renamed Gwent Archives) to
the General Offices, Ebbw Vale as part of the major regeneration
project at The Works site.

Sport

Piloting the Welsh School Games — Gemau Cymru, an innovative
project involving a range of sports governing bodies, schools, the Urdd
and our Major Events Unit.

Continuing investment in Free Swimming as part of our efforts to
increase physical activity levels and physical literacy.

Arts

Successfully hosting the 2010 National Eisteddfod in the Heads of the
Valleys.

Continuing support for the regeneration of communities through
projects such as Valley Kids, Head 4 Arts, Reach the Heights, Splash,
Young Promoters and Community Music Wales.

Investing in major capital projects, including Glynn Vivian Art Gallery in
Swansea and the Pontio project in Bangor.

5. Future policy

5.1 Within my portfolio, my main priorities for the future are to deliver the
manifesto commitments for which | am responsible, working across the
Government. These commitments are:

Continue our efforts to regenerate our town centres through planning
policies breathing new life in to towns by safer & better quality design,
developing family friendly environments & mixed use developments.

Revive our seaside towns by investing in the infrastructure, renewal &
regeneration of communities.

5.2 | welcome the Committee’s inquiry about the regeneration of town centres,
which will be very helpful informing our work on these commitments.

5.3 A number of other manifesto commitments across Ministerial portfolios
have direct relevance and strong links to my own. Perhaps the most pertinent
of these is:

Continue to invest in our most deprived communities, integrating our
Communities First Programme with all our regeneration activity and

Pade 4



ensuring that Communities First areas are a priority for funding across
all Welsh Government programmes.

5.4 Over the coming months | will be considering how best to direct future
investment from my portfolio. In doing so, | will be conscious of the need to:

¢ deliver the above manifesto commitments

¢ integrate regeneration activity across and beyond Government,
including within my portfolio and with Communities First, within the
framework of public service collaboration informed by the Simpson
Review, and planned strategic infrastructure investments across \Wales

¢ build on best practice and available evidence, including evaluations of
current projects and programmes where appropriate

e make the most of the opportunities afforded by a further round of
European funding.

Huw Lewis AM
Minister for Housing, Regeneration and Heritage

Page 5



Agenda Item 3

Enterprise and Business Scrutiny Committee
22 September 2011

EBC(4)-02-11 Paper 2

Evidence from the Deputy Minister for Agriculture, Fisheries, Food and
European Programmes

INTRODUCTION

1. | welcome the opportunity to set out my vision and priorities for European
Programmes. | have already given evidence to the Environment and
Sustainability Committee on the Agriculture, Food and Fisheries elements
of my portfolio.

2. Having all European Programmes under a single portfolio provides me
with a unique opportunity to increase synergies and coordination between
these various funding streams and to use them more holistically, as part of
a whole Government approach, to support sustainable growth and jobs.

3. European programmes will be closely aligned with the priorities of the
Welsh Government in the context of the Europe 2020 strategy for smart,
sustainable and inclusive growth.

4. | have also set out at Annex A the progress made on the relevant
recommendations on Structural Funds programmes from the Enterprise
and Learning Committee’s very helpful legacy report.

VISION FOR EUROPEAN PROGRAMMES

5. To ensure our European Programmes are amongst the most successful in
the EU in shaping the conditions for smart, sustainable and inclusive
economic growth.

MISSION

6. To work with our partners in the private, public and third sectors across
Wales to make best use of European Funds, by supporting strategic and
innovative investments in our infrastructure, businesses, communities and
people.

PRIORITIES

7. My priorities demand a balance between focussing on the delivery of

existing EU programmes and preparing the ground for the efficient and
effective delivery of EU programmes in Wales from 2014:

Page 6



(a) Ensure that current European Programmes are effectively implemented
and deliver sustainable benefits for people, businesses and
communities across Wales, in line with EU and Welsh Government
policies;

(b) Make a compelling case for Wales in discussions on the future of
Cohesion and CAP policies at UK and EU levels, seeking to secure an
outcome which fairly reflects our needs and provides the basis for
shaping and strengthening an environment in Wales in which
sustainable growth and jobs can be secured;

(c) Work with our partners to develop European Programmes for the
2014-2020 period which will help contribute to a strong environment
for growth and quality sustainable jobs, reflecting our shared ambitions
for economic success;

(d) Simplify and streamline the implementation of European Programmes,
including by achieving stronger integration across EU funding streams
and encouraging innovative approaches;

(e) Maximise the take up of European funding opportunities by
organisations across Wales, including in the private sector, and work
with our partners to develop more sustainable funding solutions; and

(f) Promote Wales as a region of excellence and innovation in the way
European funds are deployed and share best practice with countries
and regions across the EU.

KEY ISSUES OF STRATEGIC IMPORTANCE

8.

The successful delivery of the current suite of EU programmes in Wales
remains a key priority. These programmes have made an important
contribution to helping us through some very difficult economic times.

We have now committed 81% of the Structural Funds programme budget
to approved projects (over £1.5 billion of EU grant). These projects have
already assisted 230,000 participants, of which over 68,000 have been
supported to gain qualifications and some 28,500 helped into work. In
addition, 5,700 businesses have been assisted, helping to create over
8,000 (gross) jobs and 1,750 new enterprises. We have also achieved all
of the EC’s (N+2) expenditure targets for 2011.

10. The current economic context, including volatility of exchange rates,

remains challenging but | am committed to ensuring these programmes
continue to support Welsh people, businesses and communities through
these difficulties and at the same time lay the foundations for sustainable
growth and jobs for the future.

Page 7



11. Strategic decisions will also need to be made to help direct and shape the
development of any new programmes. | will be discussing these issues
with partners across Wales over the coming months with the aim of
reaching a clear view on the direction of these programmes. Key issues for
consideration include:

(a) Identifying the core priorities for funding support under future EU
programmes, including the need to make choices and to concentrate
resources to maximise impact;

(b) The extent of geographical and spatial targeting, considering how the
needs and opportunities of urban and rural areas can best be
supported and how we might exploit the benefits of city-region
approaches;

(c) Identifying the best ways of contributing towards the goals of smart,
sustainable and inclusive growth, including use of innovative
financial investment instruments;

(d) Considering the balance and scope for integration of the various EU
funds in Wales whilst maximising the impact of these investments; and

(e) Reviewing delivery approaches with the aim of facilitating easier
access to funds, while still ensuring high quality projects.

12.0nce the broad direction for future EU programmes has been agreed, we
will look to work with our partners on the detail of programmes. This will
include consideration of the lessons learned from both the 2007-2013 and
earlier programmes and the scope for simplifying and streamlining
implementation arrangements and removing barriers to participation.

NEXT STEPS

o October 2011: First draft regulations governing the Structural Funds
and the CAP published by the European Commission

. November 2011 — December 2011: “Reflection exercise” inviting
early views from partners on the strategic direction future EU
programmes should take

. Early 2012: Set out the Government’s planned vision and direction for
future EU programmes in Wales

. Early 2012 — Autumn 2012: Development of programmes with
partners

o Autumn 2012: Public consultation on future EU programmes

Page 8



) Spring 2013 — Autumn 2013: Submission to European Commission
and negotiation of programming documents

) 2014: Launch and delivery of EU programmes 2014-2020 in Wales

13. During this period we will work to ensure the Wales’ voice is heard,
building on our long standing relationships with the European Commission
and other EU institutions and through attendance at Council of Ministers
meetings as appropriate.

14.1 will continue to work closely with our Welsh MEPs and with the UK
Government, through the Joint Ministerial Council on Europe to pursue
Welsh interests at all levels of the debate. We will continue to argue for
simpler, fairer and more proportionate rules for the next round of
programmes and for flexibility in the way we can use the funds to
maximise the opportunities for sustainable growth and jobs in Wales.

15.1 am also reviewing the Welsh Government’s own internal structures and

arrangements for partnership engagement to ensure that we employ a
more integrated approach to the development of Post-2013 programmes.

Page 9



ANNEX A: Response to the recommendations of the Enterprise and

Learning Committee legacy report

| am conscious of the valuable contribution to the debate made by the
Enterprise and Learning Committee of the previous Assembly, and set out
below the current actions against the legacy report recommendations relating

to EU Programmes.

Recommendation 15. Progress
with implementing the current
Structural Funds Programmes
should continue to be a subject for
scrutiny in the Fourth Assembly. The
relevant committee should request
regular updates from the Welsh
Government and should seek to
investigate intra-regional differences
and anomalies, as well as scrutiny of
Wales’s performance compared with
other UK regions and the EU as a
whole.

| will be happy to update the
Committee on the progress of the
Structural Fund Programmes. We are
committed to transparency in the
development and delivery of the
programmes in Wales.

Also, as part of its review of evidence
to feed into the development of the
new Structural Fund programmes the
Welsh Government will be looking at
lessons learned and best practice
across the EU.

Recommendation 16. There is still
a risk of both double-counting and
under-counting project outcomes or
successes, which might affect an
individual's progress, and which
should continue to be monitored in
the Fourth Assembly. The Welsh
Assembly Government is aware of
these issues but should ensure data
collection systems avoid such
problems, including promoting local
agreements where different project
interventions overlap.

WEFO is satisfied that its participant
level data collection system allows it to
identify where an individual has
participated in more than one project
and to track the journey undertaken by
participants as they progress from
unemployment / inactivity to
employment. A similar system is in
place for ERDF where WEFO collects
information relating to businesses
supported.

WEFO also advises projects on best
practices to avoid double counting of
outcomes between projects.

Recommendation 17. In addition,
the Welsh Government should be
encouraged to develop a fuller data
set to monitor progress, beyond
simply Gross Value Added (GVA).

The Welsh Government uses a variety
of tracking indicators which provide the
overall context for assessing the
progress of West Wales and the
Valleys. These include high level
economic data, labour market data,
innovation, skills, enterprise as well as
data on social cohesion.

Page 10




Recommendation 18. The impact
of public sector funding cuts on the
availability of match funding for
Structural Funds projects should be
closely monitored and, if necessary,
contingency plans put in place.

This is very much part of WEFQO’s
ongoing management of
implementation risks.

Revised EU intervention rates were
agreed with the European Commission
in 2009 which allow greater flexibility to
mitigate potential match funding
pressures.

The All Wales Programme Monitoring
Committee has asked to be kept
informed of the impact of the CSR on
match funding and discussed an
update paper at its March 2011
meeting:
(wefo.wales.gov.uk/programmes/
allwalespmc/pmcmarch2011/?lang=en)

Recommendation 19. WEFO
should be challenged to work in
partnership with all the projects in
the 2007-13 Programmes on the
design of sustainable solutions for
the communities and individuals
affected when those projects come
to an end.

All projects are required to address the
future sustainability of their activities as
part of the business planning process
and/or to develop appropriate exit
strategies. Many existing projects will
continue to deliver activities under the
current programmes into 2015.
Financial instruments such as
JEREMIE and JESSICA will facilitate
the recycling of funds beyond the
current programme period.

The sustainable impact of investments
is a key consideration in project
selection and investments such as
those in training and up-skilling people,
renewable energy and sustainable
transport will deliver long-term
benefits.

Page 11




Agenda ltem 4

Enterprise and Business Committee
EBC(4)-02-11

22 September 2011
Paper 3

Evidence from Minister for Business, Enterprise, Technology and Science

PAPER TO THE ENTERPRISE AND BUSINESS COMMITTEE
1. Introduction

| would like to thank the Enterprise and Business Committee for their invitation to set
out the priorities for the Business, Enterprise, Technology and Science portfolio and
to provide an update on issues from the legacy report. This Paper does not include
the portfolio areas of the Deputy Minister for Agriculture, Food, Fisheries and
European Programmes, as | understand that he has also been invited to attend the
Committee.

2. Timing

This Paper is being prepared ahead of the Assembly session. Therefore, in order to
be of most assistance to the Committee, | have taken the opportunity in this Paper to
set out the key Government Commitments from my Portfolio and progress on those.

| will be in a position to provide an oral update on the wider policy context and issues
for the Committee Members when | attend the meeting.

3. Actions from the Legacy Report

Recommendation 20. The Welsh Government should continue to be scrutinised on
its joint working with the UK Government in clarifying timescales and securing
adequate funding for delivering next generation broadband across the whole of
Wales by 2015.

Following our discussions with the UK Government, they announced, in July, that
Wales will receive £56.9m (this includes the £10m already allocated in February)
from a broadband fund worth £530m to be invested in this Parliamentary term. This
funding will support our Next Generation Broadband for Wales (NGBW) project to
roll-out high-speed broadband across Wales. We will also secure significant private
sector investment towards this project as well as leveraging funding from the
European Regional Development Fund.

On 15 and 16 August, UK Government announced the remaining allocations of
funding to Scotland, Northern Ireland and the English Local Authorities. In total, only
£425m has been allocated, the remaining £105m has been kept back as
contingency funding to be allocated at a later date. | have asked my officials to work
closely with the UK Government to push for additional funding from the remaining
£105m.

Page 12



Recommendation 21. The Welsh Government should continue to be held to
account: first in ensuring cost-benefit analyses are carried out before pursuing any
change in economic development strategies, and secondly on rigorously measuring
and evaluating the success of the Economic Renewal Programme.

Cost-benefit analyses can provide important contributions to the appraisal of
alternative strategy and policy options. Consideration of wider evidence is also
needed to ensure that strategies and policies not only lead to value for money
interventions but also have sound rationales. | am fully committed to ensuring
effective monitoring and evaluation, particularly in terms of achieving value for
money.

Recommendation 31. A future committee should also scrutinise the new science
policy for Wales, which is being led by the Chief Scientific Adviser, to ensure it
contributes to the commercialisation of Welsh ideas within the science, technology,
engineering and mathematics (STEM) subjects.

The 'Science for Wales' report and recommendations, prepared by the Chief
Scientific Adviser for Wales and the Science Advisory Council for Wales, which sets
out outline proposals for the new policy, is currently out to consultation. The
consultation with key stakeholders will continue until the end of September. The
final policy will then be agreed and published. The policy will be a relatively high-
level overarching strategy. Implementation plans, as appropriate, will follow for
various aspects of the policy.

4. Key commitments
Broadband

Commitment - seek to ensure that all residential premises and all businesses in
Wales will have access to Next Generation Broadband by 2015, with the ambition
that 50 per cent or more have access to 100Mbps.

We are committed to ensuring that all businesses and residential premises in Wales
will have access to Next Generation broadband by 2015. 50% or more are expected
to have access to 100Mbps. The Next Generation Broadband for Wales (NGBW)
project aims to ensure that all businesses and households in Wales have access to
high speed broadband by 2015. A major procurement to purchase a next generation
broadband solution for areas of Wales that will not be addressed by the market in
Wales is currently underway. Using the competitive dialogue procedure, contract
award is planned for March 2012. Bidders have been invited to submit plans for
next generation broadband roll out and these plans will be refined over the coming
months in consultation with key stakeholders, such as Local Authorities. It is
expected that the roll out of infrastructure to begin from summer 2012.

The Broadband Support Scheme is also progressing well. The scheme provides a

grant of up to £1,000 to residents, businesses and third sector organisations located
in broadband notspots to obtain a broadband connection using the most appropriate

Page 13




technology available. The scheme has seen good take-up so far, and we are
working with a number of communities to bring decent broadband services to their
area for the first time. | have also recently approved changes to the scheme to
simplify the application process and increase the customer base, including the
extension of the eligibility criteria from sub-512Kbps connectivity to sub-2Mbps
connectivity and the option to pay suppliers directly.

Business Support

Commitment - Support high performing, quality companies in all those parts of the
economy which can create employment, wealth and a sustainable Wales.

Six priority sectors have already been established: ICT, Energy & Environment,
Advanced Materials & Manufacturing, Creative Industries, Life Sciences, and
Financial & Professional Services. | am also currently considering establishing a
further three sectors — agri-food, construction and tourism.

Each of the sectors is developing a targeted strategy to make a real difference to
these sectors in Wales. They all have Sector Panels, made up of successful and
knowledgeable business people and academics, to help develop these strategies
and guide in their implementation and to ensure that the views of industry are
reflected in our delivery priorities and method of approach. The panels will provide
advice on identifying sectoral priorities and methods of approach to ensure that we
achieve maximum economic benefit.

Commitment - we will expect any business seeking Assembly Government support,
including public procurement contracts, to sign up to our principles of corporate
social responsibility, with a commitment to sustainable development, training and
good employment practice.

The Welsh Government will expect any business seeking support to sign up to the
principles of corporate social responsibility and encourage its suppliers likewise. It is
my aspiration for the Department for Business, Enterprise, Technology and Science
to be an exemplar in this regard. | have asked officials to begin work on this, with
the social partners to establish the appropriate levels of corporate social
responsibility.

Commitment - we will continue to build strong links with our anchor companies and
develop strategic, mutually supportive/beneficial relationships with these key
companies, embedding them in the Welsh economy through developing close links
with our further and higher educational institutions and maximising supply chain
opportunities.

The aim is to build strategic relationships with such companies, and take a whole-
Government view of their needs. Significant progress has been made with
establishing anchor companies, and over thirty companies have been approved as
anchor businesses and have accepted the status. The alignment to academia is
key. In addition, a key priority for the work of the Department will be mapping and
understanding the effects of the supply chain and the benefits that accrue.

Page 14



Commitment - seek to establish a Wales Business Crime Unit to tackle business
crime.

We want Wales to be an excellent place to do business and this means addressing
key business concerns and barriers to business growth. With the costs of business
crime rising, we are reviewing the work previously undertaken in Wales on business
crime and will develop proposals with the business community, the Welsh police
forces and other interested parties to establish a Wales Business Crime Unit.

Entrepreneurship

Commitment - we will review what entrepreneurial support is needed by start-up and
small firms with real potential to thrive and grow, and how we can embed an
entrepreneurial culture in Wales.

Since | took up office, | have had extensive engagement with business leaders,
entrepreneurs and industry professionals from across Wales to discuss the barriers
to business and how we can move the economic recovery forward. | am taking
action to assess the requirements of micro enterprise and what active government
intervention is required to provide the support necessary to aid growth and
sustainability. In light of this, the options for the future delivery of the regional
business support service are being revisited.

Social Enterprise

Commitment - we will ensure that the mutual and cooperative sector has access to
appropriate and robust business advice and that the Ministerial lead will be in the
Economy Department.

Responsibility for developing the role of the mutual and cooperative sector in the
Welsh economy, now resides within my portfolio. This positioning alongside the
other business and enterprise activities will assist the sector, from small
cooperatives to large mutuals, to access further the full range of business
information as well as tailored advice.

Tourism

Commitment - activity and niche markets must be developed as well as securing
maximum benefit from major events in our high profile venues.

Commitment - promote Wales as a destination making a high quality tourism offer.
Work to extend the tourism season and associated benefits. Identify funding
opportunities to improve the visitor infrastructure and product in Wales. Support
investment in staff training and management to support a high quality industry.

Promoting Wales as a destination remains a key function, assisted by EU funding
over the next few years. The Strategic Marketing Action Plan 2010-13, which has
been agreed with and developed for the industry will continue to focus future tourism
marketing activities. Developing the potential of events and activity holidays will
continue to be a priority to help extend the tourism season. In this context, EU

Page 15



funded support for the creation of seven Centres of Excellence will help to enhance
the activity offer in Wales.

The Tourism Investment Support Scheme (TISS) has recently been extended to
provide support to visitor infrastructure projects and new capacity projects to ensure
that the visitor experience is enhanced. Regeneration and Rural Development
programmes are already making significant investments in local infrastructure
schemes.

The four Regional Tourism Partnerships lead on training provision for businesses
within their areas. A current ESF Funded Pilot project (over 18 months up to
December 2011) administered by People 1st, the Sector Skills Council for Hospitality
and Tourism Sector, will be reviewed at the end of the year to determine ongoing
support for up skilling across the Hospitality and Tourism Sector at different levels.

Digital Wales

Commitment - implement the Assembly Government’s Digital Wales strategy, using
digital technologies. The commitment includes opening up opportunities, creating
even greater accountability and transparency, and establishing a web gateway on
what Wales can offer.

The Digital Wales strategy seeks to exploit the opportunities and manage the risks
arising from the growth of the digital economy and society in Wales. It brings
together a large number of activities, issues and goals, structured around five
strategic themes: Competitiveness, Skills, Inclusion, Public Services and
Infrastructure. Achieving the goals will require co-ordinated action and support from
public and private sector partners across Wales.

5. Summary

We intend to support high performing, quality companies in all those parts of the
economy which can create employment, wealth and a sustainable Wales. Economic
recovery requires action to build a fairer, sustainable future, and jobs and the
economy must be an over-riding priority in the next term.

A range of actions, across all portfolios, are needed to support this economic
recovery. These include proposals to raise skill levels, reduce youth unemployment
and provide the support necessary for better economic conditions in Wales. More
details of my priorities following my review, will be announced shortly.

Page 16



Agenda Iltem 5

Y Gweinidog Addysg a Sgiliau J(,i! )
Minister for Education and Skills pﬂ.

Leighton Andrews AC / AM ’\/

Llywodraeth Cymru

Eich cyf/Your ref Welsh Government
Ein cyf/Our ref : SF-LA-5496-11

Andrew R T Davies AM

Chair, Enterprise and Business Committee,

National Assembly for Wales

Cardiff Bay

Cardiff

CF99 1NA 724 July 2011

Dend Adans

Thank you for your letter of 15" July following attendance at the Enterprise and Business
Committee. You requested some additional information on three topics and | am pleased to
be able to respond to these requests.

Enclosed you will find an update covering each element of the Youth Engagement and
Employment Action Plan. There is much progress to report here. For example, three
Intermediate Labour Market pilots have now commenced in North Wales, West Wales and
the Heads of the Valleys. These are supporting young people aged 16-17 into paid
employment. The pilots will create at least 180 placements and the learning generated
through the pilot will help inform our approach to delivery of the Welsh Jobs Fund.

| hope that you will agree with me that we are also making real strides in reducing drop-out
rates for apprenticeships. The headline figures here are a drop from 27% in 2007/08 to just
16% in 2009/10. The information provided gives a full breakdown by programme type.

Finally, in responding to your request for more information on the gender split in
construction training, | attach information from our Work-based Learning programmes. The
challenge of raising the level of engagement by females in the construction sector is
significant in Wales, as it is across the UK. Information on actions in Wales to support
greater female engagement is provided.

| hope that this information provides a full response in line with the expectations of the
Committee and | look forward to working with you and the Committee over the course of this

%Wﬁ/\*
Leighton Andrew /| AM

Y Gweinidog Addysg a Sgiliau
Minister for Education and Skills

Bae Caerdydd « Cardiff Bay English Enquiry Line 0845 010 3300
Caerdydd « Cardiff Ltinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0845 010 4400
CF99 1NA Correspondence. Leighton. Andrews@wales. gsi.gov.uk
Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i ailgylchu (100%) Printed on 100% recycled paper

Page 17



€1 Jo | abed

"S@9|AI8S pue uoisinold yinoA Jayjo

pUB JUBWIUIBA0Y) US|\ Sjuawli|dwiod JI ainsus
0} JuswAojdw3 YyinoA Joj pun4 UOKBAOUU|

dMd a4} Yyim pabebus juswiuianos) ys|ap -
SISSIApE,

Buioej Jjehojdwa aAnoadsas yym Buipueisiepun
Jayeq e syowoud 0) pue siahojdwa Joj sjonpo.d
JUBLIUIBA0S) USIBM /dMWQA 8409 Jo Buipuejsiapun
Jeneq e dojaaap 0} Bulobuo yiop\ -

uoisinoud

awwelboid YIO\\ dA0ge pue 180 sjosafoid

4S3 Jo Ajljeuonippe ainsua 0} JapJo ul Ajuoud
Ajanoeu| siwouoo3 bulyoe | pue juswAojdwg
Buisealou] ay} Japun Buualep sposloid 483

Joj euaLo Ayiqibie pasinel panssi sey Q43 M -
:UOISIAOId JUSWUIBAO0L) YS|9AN 81ealjdnp jou

op pue ubije saniAoe 4\ 1eU) ainsus o) Buidjay
pieog Aseale( juawAhojdw3 juior ay) pusye o}
pajiAu| siapinoid AlaAlep |njssa2ons Uy1og *L 102
aunf g} Se|ep\ Ul paydune| awwelbold Yo

"Suwojal alejjlam 4 A Ag peanposjul sawwesboud ayeaydnp jou

1102 1udy Op JNQ 92UBYUS SBAIBNIUI JUBWIUIBAOS) A|qLUBSSY YS|oA\ 84nsug

ajepdn

Bujwi ue|d uonoy uswhojdwz pue Juawabebuzg yno

noz

(3epdn LLoZ AINF) G1LOZ — LLOZ

NV71d NOILOV LNIJWAOTdN3 ANV LNJWIOVONI HLNOA

Page 18



€l Jo Z ebed

"1 10Z Jequieda( Jo pus pelajdwod

aq 0] sisAjeue pajiejap alow Agq dn pamoj|o} aq
0} S1 }JOAN 0} Aemyied ay; suidiapun uoisinold
jeym puejsiapun o} asjolaxa buiddew |eniul eia
pasuswwWod AlaAlep | N JO MalAaI [BlIul Uy

"SjuawaAaiyoe s||s yos Buipnpoul ‘Aemyied
ay) Buolje sjuiod Aoy Je pejelgs|eo aq ||m uosiad Bunok ay; Jo

LLOZ | SjluswaAalydy "awodino aAlisod Jaylo Jo juswAholjdws ajqeuleisns
"o 03 shemyied JaquianoN spsemoj} Aswinol snonufuod pue pajelbajul Ing a|qixa|) B Siayo 4
Joj Ajlunwiwoo auyjuo ue Buidojeasp uo yoiym swwesboud e ojul ‘Aiessasau aseym pasueyus ‘sayoeosdde
paje|dwod uaaq sey Apnys Ajjiqisesy v "8|doad JUS.LIND BUIGLIOD PINOM anoJ siy] “ajdoad Bunok Joj Aemajnol,
BunoA yim pajse) Jexew Buieq Ajusuno ale pue JuaIayo9 pue a|qixal ‘a|buls & Jo uoieald sy} Inqg swwelBbosd mau
paja|dwoo usaq aAey s}daduod SUOHEDIUNIWOD B JOU SI Yoiym Spjo 1eak /L-9| 10} MOAA O} Aemyjed, mau e 10jid
pue sjensiA Buneew [epiu] “YIOAA 0 sAemuied
JO uoeouNwWWwod pue Bupayew ay) poddns
0] pajoesuod ussq sey Auedwod Bupayew vy
‘AINp Y32z uo aoe|d aye)
[m Buneaw jxau 8y "sajeA) SS0Joe jdeouod
YO 0} sAemuyied ay) Jo uonejuawa|duul
pue juswdojaAap a8y} UO JUSLLUISAOLD)
ysf@M 8y o} poddns pue aoiApe apiaoid
0] pausi|gelse uaaq sey dnols) Buuesg v
ajepdn Bupwi | ue|d uonoy juawhojdw3z pue juawabebuz ynop | ‘oN

Page 19



¢} Jo g ebed

‘sjuswade|d 08| 1ses| je ajeald

[IM SIy| “pouad yjuow g e 1oj anoge Jo abem
wnwiuiw je yuswAholdwsa pred ojul / L-9|
pabe ajdoad BunoA poddns |im pue (sAsjep
3} JO spesaH pue sa|BAA IS8\ ‘Selep

YLON) peouswiwioo aaey sjojid ¢ — (1)
awwelboid j9x3iep Jnoge s ipawaiu|
'sease jo|d ¢

ay) ssouoe A|np pue aunr ul aoe|d Bupje) ale
sjuane juswabebus Jekojdws ‘sjdoad BunoA
pue sishojdwsa yym aoiales ay) ayowold
Jayunj 0] "9)oIquiad pue JSemplolaAeH
pue yipjen ‘poomyoe|g ui snid

8J)us) qof pue Sa|eA\ Siaaie) ‘JUBWIUIBA0L)
ysiem usamaq diysieuped ul soejd

Bunjey aie syoaloid ay| ‘juswAhojdwsa ueisns
uay) pue saloueoeA ojul ajdoad BunoA
pakojdwaun ajow 196 pinoo ‘BuLiojusul

pue Bujuies; yuswAoldws-jsod Aq dn payoeq
yoeoidde Buiyojew Aouesea-oj-jenpiaipul
‘pasijeuosiad e Jayjaym Jsa) 0} paysl|geiss
uaaq aAey sjo|id buiyoew Aouedep aaiy|

:Jdeouo09 yiom o} Aemyied ay) bujuswajddng

ajepdn

Buywin )

ue|d uonay juawhojdwz pue Juawabebuzgy ynop

Page 20



€1 Jo ¢ abed

‘108lo14 BuisnoH mau ay} ‘s|dwexa
10} ‘JUBLIUIBA0S) USI9\\ BU} UIYIM S}OBLJUOD MdU
J0 Juswdojanap ul ajdoad BunoA 1oj sapiunpoddo

‘poddns juawusanob pue sjuelb jo jdiesal
Ul asouy) J0j aouejsisse Buipnpoul ‘|eanoeid 1aAsiaym saunpoddo

- vmuﬁwhwcohmmhc%h_%cn%Mwnwywomﬂﬂ%%hma%ccm Biooto Buiuiel; pue asusuadxa yom ‘JuswAholdwa ynoA ayeald s
U ik abebu3 .£:o> aU] “JUBLILIBACS USIOM AU} 0] S19BJJU0I Juawain20.d J0}o8s 21|gnd JBapIM pue JUSLIUIBA0L)
SS0JOE S}OBJUO0D Ul SjjauUaq AjlunwiLLIo/sasne|o Alquiassy Us{om Ut SISNEID [B100S JO 3SN 3} SoNPOL|
|e10os @jowoid 0} Aemuapun S| YJOA
"LLog sunp
1§ U0 Jo|id SB[eAN-||e U SB N0 Paj|o) BJIAISS
Buiyojey Aoueoep diysaonuaiddy auluo *Jay0 diysaonuaidde ay) jo ped se swwelboud
1 1L0Z Uyoie s1nioay BunoA pue aAneniul sdiysaonualiddy 0} shkemyied | ¢
"Jayo diyseonuaidde au] Jo yuswdojaaap Buipnjoul ‘sswwelboid diysaonuaidde sejua
Japeolq ay) jo yed se pajuswa|du 0} a|doad BunoA Joj ajgejieAe saniunuoddo ay) pusixe 0} ¥89s
pue padojaasp sawwelboid sjnioay
Buno pue sdiyseonuaiddy o) shemyied
‘uostad BunoA
8y} 0] adIA1as 9|qissod }saq ayj Jayo pue pajealdnp jou ale ‘paau
- 198W Sal)lAjo. pue $a2Jnosal jey) buunsus sjosloid juswAhojdwe
"1 1L0Z Jequieda( CHOZ WIEN pue juswabebua yinoA ay) Jo |eaoidde ay) Joj ssaooid €
0 pua paje|dwod aq 0} sisAjeue pajielep pPasiAal B 80NpOJjul pue wiojul 0} ‘sewwelbold pun4 |B100S
aJow Aq dn pamoj|o} aq 0] ‘asiosaxa Buiddew ueadoing Buipnjoul ‘sajep\) SSOJoE Woly | N ale oym ajdoad
[efjiul BIA paouawWiwod AJaAlep | 33N JO malnay BunoX o} uoisinoid pue Buipuny Bunsixa Jo mainal e Jno Aed
ajepdn Buywn | ue|d uonoy juawdhojdwsz pue Juawabebuz ynop | ‘oN

Page 21



€l jo g ebed

salep\ sso.oe sqol

Jo wa)sAs Bunes e Buidojaaap Jo jenuajod ay) je
Bunjoo) Ajjeayioads ‘yoafoid aauabijjejul joxeW
Inoge| 8y} Uo SNJ0J ||IM PUB UWNINE 3y} Ul SB[\
1S9\ Ul play 8q ||IM JUSAS UOHESIBAUOY) [eay
Xau ay] "Aemuspun s| suoljoe Jo AlaAlep ay)
pue yslep ul Yipsed ul aoe|d 300) JusAS isiiy 8y |
"UONESIaAUOD

|eay ay) jo Aiaalep ay) Joddns pue

dojeaap 0} ‘suopesiuebio jeuss)xe pue [eusajul
woJj ‘paysijgelss usaq sey dnolb Buusa)s

Y "ainjny ay) ul Jsaleo Bulkysnes e uieb o} wayy
a|geus 0) uostad BunoA e 1o} aousauadxa yJom
JO anjeA pue sjiyauaq |eal sy} ajowold o) sadoy
uolesIaAuo) [eay 8yl ‘vz-| pabe asoy) Jo)
safniunyoddo juswAojdwse pue asuauadxa yiom
anoidw 0} Jayjebo) siauonioeld pue ajdoad
BunoA ‘siahojdwse Buibuug Aq juswAojdws

ojul 9|doad BunoA poddns o} swie yoiym
UOIjeSIaAUOY) |BaY, BY) paysi|geisa aAey ap\

Buiobup

"10}09S

AlejunjoA pue ajeAud ‘10j08s 21jgnd JOpIM JUBLLLIBAOS) A|qUISSSY
UsioM ay; uiypm saniunpoddo Bulpuaixe Buipnjoul ‘sajep) ssoloe
¥2-1| sebe asoy) Joj aousuadxa yiom Jo} saniunyoddo asealou)

'S3|B\\ @N[BA AQ palieyd si Ydiym ‘pieoq
S)yeuaq 9|qeuleISnsS ay) Jo Jaquiawl e Si os|e

jun juswAojdw3 pue yuswabebug YiNoA sy

ajepdn

Buuwn

ue|d uonoy juawdhojdws pue juswabebug yno

Page 22



€1 10 g ebed

‘[epow |esiesdde jsoo e

Jo Juswdojaap ay) pue Bujuiel Jo Juswhojdwa
‘uoneanpa ul jou ajdoad BunoA o sjs0o ay)

uo malnal ainjess)l| e ‘ajdoad BunoA yim dnosb
SNJ0J B ‘BASUBMS pUB WBYXaIAA Ul S[oAS) (|B Je
Jers yum sdnoub snooy pue smalasejul painjonis
-IWas paAjoAul sey Apnjs aAisuayaiduwiod ay |

‘Buiurey) Jo yuswkojdws ‘uonesnps
ut Jou ajdoad 6unoA Jo uoipodoud ay) Buonpail
JO S8} Ul s8[eAA ul S)nsal paAoidull jsow

‘8o1joe.d poob Buleys o} MaiA
B yum sjodsjoy | 33N BuisAjeue pue (sio}0es 21ignd pue Asejunjon
‘ajeAud Bulpnjour) s10}98s || SS0J0€ W0l SeAleiul dAIsod uo

PUE }S8q 8y} Jo Bwios papodal aaey jey) seale | Z10z yotey | Bulpiing Aq syuswebueise diysiepes| Ajuoyine |eoo| wuoyul |m pue | g
OM]} SB ‘WEeYXaI\\ pue BasUBMS JO SaljLoyine 'spaau Bujuses) jeuonippe ypm asoy pue ajdoad BunoA s|qesaujna
[B20] 8y} ur uaxe) Burieq seyoeoidde ay; jo 10} saniunuoddo sjesodiooul [IIm SIY| "SS|BAA Ul JuswiAojdiua
Apnjs e pauoisSIWWOoD Weang Yo swweiboiy pue juswabebus yinoA o} yoeoidde |jeisno ay) Jos 0) 3839
uoneAouu| pue Aousiol3 s JUSWILIBACS)
USIeM 84} 's|IMS pue uoleonp3 Joj juswpedaq
3y} yum Ajesojo Buryiom ‘| 1oz Aszenuep uj
‘pieog Aianiieq yuswholdw3 pue yuswebebug
uyIinoA Aq usesiano Buieq ue|d uonay Jo
uonejuswaldwy “| Loz Arenuer u) paysignd uejyg
uonoy juswiholdw3z pue Juswabebug YnoA
0102 ‘Juawhojdws pue yuswabebus
'010¢ 48q030Q Ul paysi|qejsa 18qoj00 yinoA Joy Ajijiqisuodsau Buiyoseiano yym wesy meu e ysiige)s3 L
Jun juswiAoldwz B Juswabebuz ynoA
ajepdn Bujw ue|d uonoy juswihojdwz pue yuswabebug yno | ‘oN

Page 23



g} jo 2 ebed

‘Kjixa|dwod ul uoonpal
a|qissod 0) malA e yim sueld pue sdiysiauped Jo
adeaspue| Japim ayj JO HAN aU) AQ uoIBIBPISU0D

Jualing Jo ynsal ayj syeme sdiysiauped

10 @ouewopad 8ouapIAe 0] SWa)SAS

ysi|gejsa 0] yJom Jayun4 ‘seale swwelsboid
pue Aaijod Jioy) uo }oeq paa} apiroid 0}

s|eoyjo pes| bulgeus ‘diysiauned yoea o} jJuss
pUE PasuUBLILWNS 8JOM SUOISIBA Jelp Uo S|eIolo
woJj syuswiwo) ‘pasijeulj bureq Jo paysignd
Jay}le ale SUOISIaA [Bul PUB {|-| L 0Z 10} Sue|d
dAD Yelp Jidy) uo suone}Nsuod paja|dwos
aney sdiysiauped s,a|doad Buno pue uaipjiyd

Buiobup

'1s8q 8y} Jo piepue)s ayj 0} Jybnoiq a.e ||e jey; pue AjeAjoaye
Bunjom are sdiysisuped s8jdoad BunoA pue uaipjiyo ainsug

‘1102 Jequieda(g

Jo pua paja|dwoa aq o} sisAjeue pajieap

alow Aq dn pamoj|o} aq 0} ‘asiosaxa Buiddew
[E1}IUI BIA P22USLILLIOD AJBAIIBP | TN JO MaIAey

“110Z AInp Ul 8)ISgaM S JUBLLILIBA0L)

ysfe M @yj uo uonealignd 1oy anp si podal

8y ‘juswdojaaap Aaljod Jo seale aAoadsal
Iy} Jo Joadsal ul uoleLlloul au) J8pISU0I 0)
pajsanbai usaq aAey siaquiaw pieog AsaAlleQg

pue a|ge|leAe MOU S| Alewwns pue podal [euy v

ajepdn

Bujwi

ue|d uonoy juswhojdwz pue juswabebuz yno

Page 24



€1 jJo g abed

210z |udY | Wwoyj pajoadxa si

1SJ14 Saljiwe4 Jo Ino |joJ ||n4 "Ajpoys payodal aq
0} anp S| ‘Sa|eA\ SPISINO SisAjeur [eula)xa Ui}
pue siaauold ayj wouy ‘1ey os Buiuies| ay) uo
Hodal wsjul uy “{7| 0] }sii4 sal|iwe jo aseyd
Joauold ay} Ul paAjoAUl Sy JO Jaquinu |B)o)

oy Buibuuq | L0z |udy | woy paysijqe)se aiom
BIOSU0D @31y} JoUun} ¥ "SS|BAA UHON Ul U0
pue S3[BAA UINOS Ul WNIPOSUO0D 8uo ‘0Loz AInp
Ul Seale Yy XIS SS0JOE paysi|ge)se alam seale
eluosuoo Buiuies| Jeauoid |eiiul om| “sal|iwe)
pue usaip|iyo Joj SaW02}N0 Jajaqg Uuo snooy

01 Buidjay pue saaiAlas aul| Juol) Jo AlsAllep

ay) Buinoadw ‘seljiwe) poddns o} shkem jsaq
AU} ysi|qe}sa 0} Swie sAlenIul 1sil4 saljiwe 8y

Buiobup

133N Buiwosaq Jo ysiu 18 aq Aew ualpjiyo
asoym sal|iwey Bupsisse o} yoeoidde pajelbajul ue dojgaag

bl

‘133N Buiwoosaq wouy sjdoad Bunok

JusAald 0} Japlo ul s||iys diysinauaidanue pue
sanunuoddo Buuasiunjoa 18)s0j ‘saniunuoddo
Buiustes| paseq ¥iom apiroid 0} SiexIom

yinoA Joj sajol pajsabbns jo abuel e sapnjoul

1| “1eak siyj Jeje| ‘|eaosdde |euaisiulp o) 10algns
‘uorjeynNsuod 1o} paysiignd aq ||IM ue|d Uonoy ¥
ABejens yelp ay] -Ayigeloldws Jo sway) ayj uo
aAnoalqo Asy e sulejuod gLz — Z10z Abajeng
90IAI8S UINOA |euoneN palepdn yelp ay|

¢l0c Ydlen

‘epuabe | 33N oy Buuaalep ul ajos syl Buipsebal souepinb
a1epdn pue saje\\ Ul 82IAJ8S YINOA 8U) JO 8|0J 8U} JapISU0D

(018

ajepdn

Buiw

ue|d uonoy juswhojdwz pue Juawabebuz ynop

Page 25



€1 Jo g sbed

‘slayoea)peay

pue siayoes) Joj Juswabeue| souewouad +
SJayoeajpeaH pue uononpu| Joj Splepue)s
ay} Ajjeoyyioads - spiepue)g [euoISSajold +
ado +

HOJN @y} pue diysiapea +

siayoea] payiienb Aimau 1oy

JuswdolaAa(] [euoisSsajo.d Alie3 pue uononpu| +
:10} s@1njonJjs mau dojaAap

0] sjesodoud uo Bupjom Ajjuaiind ale uoIsIAI(g
JuswdojaAa(] [BUOISSDJ0.d PUB JuswaAoidu|
Buiuwiea ay) ‘ynsas e sy ‘bBuieq|em

puUE SSWO2}N0 JaLLIes| U0 SNO0) JUd)SISUod
pue Jeao e yym Apuaiayos pue Ajjeansiioy
aJow Jayjaboy yiom Aay) jey) os abueyo o)
paau siauonnoeld ||e 10} 04D pue juswabeuew
aouewlopad ‘spiepue)ls [euoissajold

Joj syjuswabuele Jusund 8y} Jey) pPapnjouoo
M8IABJ 83U} JO awo2)no ay| “juswdojensp
[euolssajold Buinuiuoo pue juswabeuew
aouewIopad ‘splepue)s |euoissajoid

JO maIABl By} paje|dwod aAey S|BIDILO

Bulobup

133N Buiwosaq jo ysu
1e sjidnd yum AjoAnoaye Buijesp Jo sssualeME 2INSUD ‘S1oUIES)

10 (ad9D) uswdojanap |euoissajold snonuiuod ayy ybnoay |

¢l

ajepdn

Buw |

ue|d uonay juswhojdwsz pue juswabebuzg Yynox

‘ON

Page 26



€1 Jo oL ebed

1011d 8y} Joj wisiueyoawl AlaAljep e dojaAsp

0} siapjoyayels ynm Bupiom usaq aney s[eoiyo
JUBLLILIBAOS) US[EA “S8[eM Ssosoe jno Buijjos jo
S}ijauaq pue s)jS02 aAljejal ay) ajeblyseul 0} g1
-1 1 Jo sebe ay) usamyaq ualp|iyd Joj jojid yoeoo
Buiules| e ayeuapun |IM JUSWUIBAOS) YSIOM aYL

cl0c Yydiey

"go1joeld jsaq Buiwuojul

0] MaIA B UM ‘jooyas Auiepuooss 0} Aewld wouy uolisuel
Jisyy Buunp ajdoad BunoA Bunioddns uo siseydwa sejnaiped
yum ‘uoisinoid yoeoo Bujuies| gL-| 0} UOISUBIXS ue Jo|id

Sl

"1 102 Jequa)dag Ul sJajsIuIpy 0} papIwugns

aq [m a21Ape [eniu] “(Jeah ay ul usje)| sishjeue
pajiejep aiow e Aq pamojjoj pue | Loz AInr

€1 uo paysiignd aq 0} aseajay isild [ealshe}s)
0L0Z ‘Selep Ul S|IMS }NPY jo ABAINg [euoheN
ay) wouy sbuipuly Junoooe ojul bure) ‘spiemuo
210z woly Asanijep pue Aoijod si|js diseq gl
-1sod Buiwiojul 0} MBIA B UM AIOYS S2USLIWOD
0] uolIsiAoid s||is 2ISeq }|npe Jo uolienjeAs

Bulobup

‘uoisinold s|s oiseq ajelidoidde 0] ssadoe aAey
s)inpe ainsua pue a|doad BunoA jo s||ys oiseq ay} dojeasp Jayun4

148

‘alinbal sanisiaAlun

pue siakojdwa yjoq jey; suonesylienb

pUE SIS @y} YyIm uoneonpa aaes) |im ajdoad
BunoA ayj jey) sueaw siy| “19xJew Jnoge|

|BOO| U} JO Spaau ay} Junoooe OjuUl Saye) Jayo
WN|N2LLIND |B20T @Y "S8210yd OE JO wnwiiuiw
e palayo uaaq aAey g|-1sod je ajdoad BunoA
|IE 18U} pawiuod sey auljuQ sajep sieaied
WwoJj paAiaoal eje — shkemyied buiuiea] gL-¢1

L1L02
Jaquiaoa(

JuawAholdwe
0] UOI1EaNPa WoJlj pue [ooyds Aiepuodas o} Azewud woij uonisuel)
ay) Bunjew ajdoad BunoA Joj uoisiaoid pue Buiuueld usyjbuang

€l

ajepdn

Buiwn |

uejd uonoy juawdhojdwz pue juswabebuz yino A

Page 27



€1 Jo || abed

CRIEIETEY,

Jayunj Joj ajgejieAe ale Bunssw siy) Jo

sanupy “ueid SJA BY} UIYHIM paulejuod suonoe
ay) Jsuiebe apew buiaq si ssaiboid moy ssnoasip
0} | 1L0Z dunf g uo pjay sem Buiesyy sieowo
JUSUWIUIBAOY US|o M — UB|d UOHOY STA |eniul ay |

"1 102 ¥snbny
| wouj sewwelboud yuswAojdw3 o) sdalg

Jo sdiyseauiels] ‘sdiysaonuaiddy Buuaaiep
suofesiuebio Gz ayj 01 A|nf Ul uolNqLIsIp

Joj pauue|d ale pue Jayaboj ind Buleq ale
syoed sainosal Japinold Buiuies paseg HOM

‘pajoslold piomssed Jabuo)

ou S| pue W0J'SS[EMSESPIDIq MMM B 3|qe|leAR
S| UOfjewojul jey) palljou alam SIapinold
'(S3A) ABejens diysinauaidaiug yinoA auj yiim
abebus pjnoa Asy) moy ssnasip 0} | L0z Aey

L} uo siaquiaw pieog WLN Yim piey Bupesiy

(5102-0102)
Buiobup

"9AI}oBUI A||BOIWIOU098 Jo/pue pakojdwaun
ale oym asouy) 0} Aenaiued ‘diysinausaidaljus ul uonedoiied
pue }saJajul a)e|NWNS 0) SJUSAS pue saljiAloe pajabie) JaAljeQq

9l

"110Z Jaquiaydeg Ul 22UsWLWod [|IM 10|14
ay] "/ pue g sieak ‘') uoyeonpa Aiepuodss pue

Arewud useamieq uonisuel) uo Ajuewnd Buisnoo)

ajepdn

Bujwi

ue|d uonoy juswhojdwsg pue juawabebuzy ynop

‘ON

Page 28



¢l Jo z| ebed

" | 33N @S0u} 0] pajejal eyep Jo sisAjeue
1SNQOJ $S$3| NG [BUOIPPE SapPN[OUI YoIym
*(133N) Buurely Jo yuswAojdws ‘uoneoanpa
u1 jou ajdoad BunoA, una(ng ino o} eyepdn
Auauenb ayj ysignd |im am Anp 2z uo os|y

'600Z pue Jeak Joj sajewss |euy apisbuole
‘010Z pue Jeak je | 33N 8.1e oym ajdoad

BunoA jo sajewi)ss [euoisiAoid apnjoul ||IM pue
‘110z Aine 2z uo ysygnd im JoxJepy Jnoge] au)
pue uoneanp3 ul 8jdoad BunoA jo uoneddiued,
asea|ay 1S114 [eolsiielS [enuue ay |

€102 Yyoiep

‘wa)sAs Bupyoel) 1sngou e jo juswdojenap
ay) Buipnjous ‘uosiad BunoA ayy Joj papiaoid si 8a1asas dn pautol
aJow e ainsua 0} suolesiuebio usamiaq Bulutes Jo uawAhojdwa

‘uoneoanpa ul jou ale oym ajdoad BunoA uo uonewojul Jo
Buueys pue ‘uonewojul |eaisiels ‘Juswabeuew ejep usyibuansg

8l

"Z10Z Jequisydeg ul 8ousWIWOd

awwelibold ay} jey) pasodoid aiojaiau)

s11] "AJanep 133N JO M3BIASI JUBLIND BY}

Aq pawJojul aq 0} swwelbold ayj Mojje 0} Jopio
ul pue Buipuny jo uoewluod Ul sAefep Jo jnsal
e se a|easawul Jo abueyo pasodoid Buipiebal
Ajoys siejsiuly 0} papiwgns aq [[ImM 89IAPY

‘awwelbolid sjunoooy juewloq ayy

1o} uoneayioads auljIno ay) ul papnioul AjiAioe
133N pasodoud Jo seale peolq 9a4y} ayj uo
uolne}nsuod e Bupiepapun si pun4 AlepoT 91g

L 102
Jequisda(g

*133N aJe oym a|doad
BunoA poddns 0 (| L0z Ul payoune| aq 0}) Sajep\ Ul awwelbold
SJUN022Y JUBLLIOQ Mau 3y} Joj uoieoyioads ajqeurejsns e dn 198

Ll

ajepdn

Buiwi

ue|d uonoy juawdhojdwz pue yuswabebu3z ynox

Page 29



€1 jo g| ebed

Page 30

"uooe |B20| Jo Bunebie) aAndaye alow

ay) s|qeua ||Im joafoid ||eJaA0 8y} JO SLIOINO
ay] ‘qol e Buiaey Jo Bujurel) Jo uonesnpa

u1 Buiaq jou Jo ysu je ale oym ajdoad BunoA
Ajjuapl 0} pasn aq Ued Jey) Jos ejep 8102 e

aq ||Im 3Jom siy} Jo Indino ay] ‘yono} ui Buideay
jo sAem )s@) ||m sjojid inoj ay] “abeys Bunojd

3y} je mou s| joalosd yono| ui Buidaay| ay |

a)epdn

Buuwn |

uejd uonoy juawhojdwsz pue jusawabebug yno A




yesp Jo Aouepunpal
0} enp swweJboid Buiules| siay) Yo Jo Jepiroid Buiules| ssyjoue je swwelboid Buiuses) iy Buinuuos ‘swwelboid Buiules)
MaU e 0} pallajsuel;
Jaules| ayj aseym Jo (,syno-doup Apes,) Buouswiwos Jo syeam g ulylm papus jey) sswweiboid Buiuies| sepnjoxa siyl (,)

GL¥'9

%91 089°¢ 02991 %91} GEO'L %91 G¥9'L 0Lz'ol 01/6002
%l GEB'E 0SZ'8l) %LC 06%' | 0¥6'9 %lLe 0ve'2 GOg'L 60/8002
%.2 00L°S 016'81 %62 GEB'L G..'9 %92 GoL'E GeELTL 80/.002
ecow_wm. mﬂ_wwm () e_.aﬂwm_“_”_hwwm W eﬁwwmﬁﬁwwm i
6 : B
ooy, by Aabwa omyo  SUSMED aabws  weo UBMED  wis
Bt Bujuiee Pl & Bujuses Pigliss e Bujuiea M.>..MW mnmwﬂ

sdiyssonuaiddy ||y

sdiysaonuaiddy uispop

sdiysaonuaiddy wapoj uopepunod

(M T7) pioosy safem Buiwea] buojsyry :901n0s

sawweJsboid
Buiuiea] Y4 pue YA 10) sajey 1nQ douag

Page 31



Doc 5.

Currently in Wales, women account for approximately 11% of total employment in the
construction sector. This figure is slightly lower, with the exception of Northern Ireland,
than the proportion of women in total employment in the sector across the UK (13%),
England (14%), Scotland (15%) and Northern Ireland (6%)."

The proportion of women in manual trades is broadly comparable with other parts of the
UK (1% in Wales (1%), Northern Ireland (1%), England (2%), Scotland (3%). The issue of
gender imbalance is therefore an industry-wide rather than a Welsh specific issue.

The Welsh Government is aware of a number of schemes to help support and promote
females into careers and employment in the construction sector. Details of four actions in
support of this agenda are set out below. Also below are details of the numbers of
females who have participated in various Work-based Learning programmes from 2007/08
to 2009/10.

CYT - Pink Ladies

Construction Youth Trust offers the Pink Ladies training sessions across South Wales in
partnership with local authorities and community groups. Training looks at a variety of
different skills including Plumbing, Tiling, Bricklaying and Painting & Decorating. The CYT
scheme is about developing new skills, confidence and experience in working in the
construction industry. The beneficiaries are young women aged 14 - 30 from a variety of
different groups ranging from schools and colleges to young offenders and the homeless.
The Welsh Government is not a direct funder of this project. ConstructionSkills Wales are,
however, a partner.

Women in Construction network

Lead by Joyce Watson AM, Women in Construction is an interactive website aimed at
providing useful tools for women considering starting a career in construction, and for
those who want to share their experiences. Campaign partners include Construction Skills,
Construction Youth Trust (CYT), Pembrokeshire College, Carmarthenshire College (Coleg
Sir Gar), Powys College (Coleg Powys), Swansea College, Chwarae Teg, The Association
of Women in Property (WiP), Federation of Master Builders (FMB), The Institution of Civil
Engineers (ICE) and Women's Engineering Society (WES).

The Welsh Government is not a direct funder of the project.

Single Equality Scheme

ConstructionSkills operate a Single Equality Scheme which aims to set out how it will
deliver and promote equality within the Construction Sector. WG is mentioned as a partner
along with Chwarae Teg. While this is not a specific project, the scheme does identify
principles for how ConstructionSkills work will be governed in tackling diversity and
equality issue.

' Figures taken from the ConstructionSkills Sector Skills Assessment 2010, which draws
data from the Labour Force Survey 2009.

Page 32



ConstructionSkills EIF Project

The project will provide employers with female only training courses in order to improve
soft skills such as confidence building, career building, leadership training and networking.
This is a UK-wide project via the UKCES Employer Investment Fund, although delivery will
be supported in Wales. We expect that around 4% of the 350 beneficiaries to be from
Wales. This has yet to be confirmed with ConstructionSkills.

Page 33



(MM T7) piooey ssjem Buiuies Buojay] :821n0S

ovL‘e9 088'S 0 SILZ'1L9 G8e'9 0 68€29 0609 |ejor

0.6°LE 001 0 ogL'ze SLL 0 668'zE Sl sjeway

0lL'LE 08L'S 0 S80'6Z 0.2'9 0 6£5'62 086°S alepn sswwelsboid 1gMm IV

G6Z't 0l 0 6812 Gzl 0 G¥e'Z Gzl [ejoL

085"l 0 0 O0ve'l 0 0 0SL'} % ajews4 sowwesboud Buiuies)

GLL'Z (o]} 0 Svi'L Gzl 0 G6L'L Gzl sep Paseg-}IoM Jayi0

GS'8l g9/ 0- 08’y 009 0 G521 0z9 |eyo )

065'2 GP 0 0809 Ge 0 06€'S Gl ajewa4 (sswwelboud

G98'0l 0zL 0 oov's G9G 0 09g'. 509 EIE Josseospaud
pue) piing |INS

GG1L'Z 0 0 S0'2 0 0 0£v'Z 0 [ejoL

099’ 0 0 095'I 0 0 Gel'l 0 ajews (¥ ;eAe7) BWOIdIQ

G667 0 0 GI§ 0 0 069 0 alen S|INS ulepon

G99'9}) G15'Z 0 S9e'ZL S6¥'Z 0 §96'L) gG1L'2 [ejol

GL6'8 Gz 0 S¥Z'6 G2 0 ¢<vl's Gz ojewsa4 (g jpAeM)

0S.'L 06%'Z 0 ozZL's Sl¥'Z 0 0zZ's 0EL'Z alep diyseonuaiddy wepopy

G/5'IZ 0652 0 018'v2 galL'e 0 66892 G6lL'E [elol

GZZ'z)L Ge 0 S09'tl gg 0 087l S olewe4  (Z |eaeT) diyssonuaiddy

0S€'6 0962 0 S06'0l 0LL'E 0 s90CL ozL'e slep WepoW uojepunod

uoisinosd uojsiaoad UorSIAGI]
u..m__.:mm_ uoRINIISU0D m_.m_Emm_ uonaniisuod m:w.“..wme_ uoioNIISU0D
PaSEG-YIOM ||V PaSEG-IOM 1Y paseq 1apusg ad/A} swwesbougd
“HIOM ||y
01/600Z 60/8002 80/200Z

Japuab pue adA} swweiboid Aq ‘1eeh ojwepeose ay) Buunp aAnoe sawwelboid Bujuies) - uoisiaosd Buiuiea paseq-}Jop

Page 34



‘sped JusnysuUod auy Jo WNS 8y} pue s|e10) papunos Apuapuedepul ayj usemiaq Aouedalasip Jybis swos aq Aew asay] (@)
"G 1S8JEBU 8Y} 0} papunol aie sainby Jayjo ||e ', Aq pajuasaidal ale ( uey) Jejealb pue g uey) ssa| sainbi4 (p)
‘awielfoid Yoes Uo S9UD PAJUNDI B4 ||IM JBSA ales s} Jo asinod ay) InoyBnosy) swwelboid auo Uey) 810W UO pajjoius Jewes| i (2)
5L Anp 01 151 1snBny wouy suni Jesk onsepedy (q)

ewoidip uoyoruisuoy - GG¢

slwejsAs Buiping [euisnpu| - ZGE

sJouaul payld - yie

aoueusjuiew sAemybiH - £vE

Buijiem auois Aig - v1€

Ansnpui syonpoud Buipjing - Zog

Asnput uone|(ejsul 8oua4 - ¥82

sigauibus seolnas Buiping - zgz

apedj Jsquil| - €2

BuisnoH - 122

uonesabuyal g Buiuonipuos Jie ‘uoneuaa ‘Bunesy - Z1z

Buiquinid - /11

uononnsuoy - gl b

[eoluyoelonaaig - GOL
:(sanjea g1.d47) sepoo Joyoss jo Buidnolb e uo paseq Jojoes uononiisuo) (&)
1S3I0N

Page 35



Carl Sargeant AC / AM
Y Gweinidog Llywodraeth Leol a Chymunedau
Minister for Local Government and Communities

Eich cyf/Your ref
Ein cyf/Our ref CS/5637/11

Andrew RT Davies

Chair of the Enterprise and Business Committee
National Assembly for Wales

Ty Hywel

Cardiff Bay

Cardiff

CF99 1NA

C\JQL/\ /é@’kd/-é 2N

N (ﬁ
Jf-:a

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

[| August 2011

Thank you for your letter dated 15 July outlining the action points that arose following my
attendance at the Enterprise and Business Committee meeting.

The information relating to each of the action points is detailed in the attached document

numbered 1 through to 8.

Carl Sargeant AC/ AM

Y Gweinidog Llywodraeth Leol a Chymunedau
Minister for Local Government and Communities

Bae Caerdydd « Cardiff Bay
Caerdydd » Cardiff
CF99 TNA

Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i ailgylchu (100%)

Page 36

English Enquiry Line 0845 010 3300
Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0845 010 4400
Correspondence.Carl.Sargeant@wales.gsi.gov.uk

Printed on 100% recycled paper



Follow Up Questions from the Enterprise and Business Committee

1. Changes to the evaluation and monitoring of transport projects to
control overspends

Sponsored Local Authority Schemes — Transport Grant

Historically, Local Authorities (LA) bid on an annual basis for funding from the
annual Transport Grant bidding round. Bids were then scrutinised by officers
who presented recommendations on funding for Ministerial approval. Once
Ministerial clearance was received a grant offer letter stating the amount of
funding that would be provided was issued.

LA’s are required to provide monthly reports detailing progress against
allocated funding. Since 2009 the Welsh Government caps its contribution to
the figure stated in the offer letter regardless of the scheme cost.

The funding process has now been changed to require bids to be made on a
Regional basis. This revised process requires the Regional Transport
Consortia (RTC) to submit bids which are assessed for clear evidence of
deliverability and Value for Money.

The funding to the RTCs is subject to challenge and scrutiny at quarterly All
Wales Programme Management Groups. These meetings discuss the
individual RTC’s performance and have the delegation to transfer funds
between the RTCs. Each Transport Consortia also holds monthly meetings to
discuss their individual performance. Welsh Government Transport officials
attend these meetings and provide scrutiny and challenge to ensure that the
RTCs are delivering the benefits outlined in their submissions and that these
remain aligned with the Welsh Government’s objectives.

Internally Managed Major Construction Schemes

The payments for these schemes adopt a “target cost” approach which has
been competitively bid. This means that the Welsh Government shares the
burden of cost overruns or the benefit of cost savings below the “target cost”;
therefore the interests of both parties to the contract are aligned unlike in
traditional adversarial contracts. The management of the contract ensures
active risk management allowing early identification of risk this avoids or
minimises the potential impact of any risks.

The Welsh Government monitors the projects ensuring that optimum value is
being obtained for the investment being made. The schemes are also
monitored using Construction Excellence Key Performance Indicators (KPI's)
to ensure that the quality service offered at tender is delivered. These KPI's
are then used in future selection processes.

All Internal Control Projects use the OCG approved NEC version 3 forms of
contract which inherently build in good risk, project and financial
management. The project management structures also follow "PRINCE 2"
principles as well as utilising the new Welsh Government Gateway Review

Page 37



process. Transport has also introduced a more comprehensive risk
management process to ensure the cost and time consequences of risk are
extensively analysed prior to Gateway Reviews or Key Stage Boundaries. Key
Stage Boundaries and /or Gateway Reviews have been established between
all key decision points in the project providing Senior Management with
comprehensive information on "project health" and its value for money.

2. Availability of Convergence Funding for the electrification of the rail
link of London to Swansea, and responsibility for funding this work

| would like to once more stress my disappointment about the UK
Government’s announcement on 1 March to electrify the Great Western Main
Line only as far as Cardiff — effectively ignoring the economic benefits and the
economies of scale of electrifying the line between Cardiff and Swansea at
the same time.

The UK Government stated that there was no business case to electrify the
line between Cardiff and Swansea, identifying only modest benefits based on
the current frequency of train service to Swansea. The Welsh Government
believes that the business case for electrification between Cardiff and
Swansea is stronger than that presented by the DfT and the Welsh
Government is working to present a more positive business case.

Funding of UK rail infrastructure is non devolved and responsibility is retained
by the UK Government on an England and Wales basis. It is therefore right
and proper that the UK Government should fund the electrification to
Swansea. | would not wish to see Convergence Funding used for this.
Convergence Funding is money attributed to the most deprived areas of
Wales, for projects which meet Welsh Government aims and complement our
programmes. In addition, Convergence funding is only available until 2013
and as this work is not scheduled to be built until 2016/17 by then it would be
too late to spend it.

3. The introduction of Bimodal trains, and the proposal to trial these on
the Cardiff to Swansea route

| understand that the UK Government intends to use bimodal trains on a wider
network than the Great Western Main Line between Cardiff and Swansea.
When the Welsh Government has established that there is a business case
for electrifying the line to Swansea, | would expect the UK Government to
fund electric trains and not bimodal trains to operate to Swansea.

4. The need for improved rail infrastructure links past Cardiff

It is essential that there are strong rail links throughout Wales and
improvements made to the infrastructure, where necessary, to support this.

Page 38



| believe it is vital to the economy of South West Wales that the Great
Western Main Line is also electrified between Cardiff and Swansea and we
will make the case to the UK Government to state this, as | said previously.

Additionally, the main infrastructure problem west of Swansea is the single
track bottleneck between Gowerton and Loughor. | am funding Network Rail
to redouble this track, and this is linked to Network Rail's replacement of the
Loughor Viaduct in spring 2013. This will improve the performance and
reliability of existing train services and will enable future additional services to
be provided west of Swansea at a later date.

| have also funded Network Rail to complete a detailed timetable and
engineering feasibility study (Grip 3) to improve frequencies between Maesteg
and Bridgend to half hourly. This is a pre-requisite to further extending these
services between Bridgend and Cardiff, and the new Brackla Station. The
initial report is expected by the end of summer 2011 and | will then be in a
position to consider the business case, in prioritising the National Transport
Plan (NTP) which | will publish in the autumn.

5. The previous UK Government’s business case for rail electrification to
Swansea, and what changes have occurred since this was produced.

| am enclosing the previous UK Government’s electrification briefing of 13
May 2009 to electrify the Great Western Mainline to Swansea.

| am also enclosing the business case papers that the current Secretary of
State for Transport, Philip Hammond, laid before the House of Commons
Library this March which maintains that there is no business case to electrify
the line between Cardiff and Swansea.

The business cases do not provide a like for like comparison, and, as you
know, we are challenging the UK Government’s position that there is not a
business case to electrify the line between Cardiff and Swansea and we will
present our findings to the UK Government by the end of this year.

Page 39



6. The shift in balance of expenditure between road and rail projects,
and plans for what this balance should be going forward.

The split in years between road and rail funding is detailed in the table below:

Year 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12

Road (Em) | 229.361 256.286 256.451 234.195 202.314*

Rail (Em) 179.979 182.137 198.967 207.188 202.703*

* forecast figures

| am currently in the process of prioritising the National Transport Plan, which
| intend to publish during the Autumn. This will provide further clarity of the
split in funding between road and rail.

7. Progress on introducing an hourly service between Shrewsbury and
Aberystwyth

We funded a project to increase the capacity of the railway infrastructure in
order to facilitate a more reliable service as well as an hourly service, and this
work has been completed.

Network Rail has now fully commissioned and implemented its ERTMS
resignalling project. This has allowed the new infrastructure that we funded to
be commissioned and brought into live operation. Network Rail has
experienced some initial technical issues with the ERTMS project which has
caused train delays and cancellations. It needs to be proven to be fully
operational and reliable before | would consider additional trains.

Work is ongoing to complete a viable timetable option.

| will consider the case for an hourly service as part of the NTP prioritisation.

8. The National Improvement to rail stations programme

Nationally, responsibility and funding for improved accessibility are non-
devolved and the Department for Transport (DfT) is responsible for the
national improvement programme for England and Wales. This is known as
“Access for All”, and a number of stations are being improved by Network Rail
with DfT funding. Welsh stations included in this programme are:
Abergavenny, Bridgend, Neath, Prestatyn, Wrexham General and Severn
Tunnel Junction.

| am also investing in improving station accessibility as | believe that it is the
right thing to do. Any new stations funded by the Welsh Government are fully
accessible for all passengers, including, for example, the new stations on the
Ebbw Valley Line and the Vale of Glamorgan Line.

Page 40




The Welsh Government is continuing its commitment to the Wales Station
Improvement Programme (NSIP+). The £40 million programme - including
£21 million of European Structural funds - seeks to provide exemplary
accessibility for station improvement schemes. A scheme at Swansea Station
scheme is well advanced and other projects are under preparation.

In addition, the Welsh Government has also funded a number of smaller
schemes such as providing a lift to Platform Zero at Cardiff Central Station.
Previous to this, Cardiff Central station had accessible lifts to all platforms
except Platform Zero. Passengers with mobility problems had to either walk
up a steep flight of stairs or else come out of the station concourse around to
the elevated car park in order to access this platform. The lift was installed in
December 2010.

| am also funding, together with NSIP+ grant, a series of Easier Access
Scheme installations which will provide improvements to rural stations in
Wales where there is a stepping heights issue between the station platform
and the train. The programme will cover 29 platforms at 24 stations (some
with 2 platforms) across both the Convergence Area and non-Convergence
Areas along the North Wales mainline (including Anglesey), the Conwy Valley
Line, Cambrian Coast Line, Heart of Wales Line and the south Wales
mainline/Pembroke Dock line.

DfT and the railway industry need to do more to improve accessibility, and
Arriva Trains Wales has recently bid for DfT funding for improvements for
further stations in Wales.

| have also made it clear that improved station accessibility in Wales is a key
priority for UK Government funding for the next Control Period (2014 — 2019).
My officials have already held discussions with their counterparts in the DfT,
and | will raise this matter when | meet with the Secretary of State for
Transport. Network Rail is currently undertaking a feasibility study to
determine the scope of works required at the most inaccessible stations in
Wales and my officials are working with Network Rail as this develops.

Page 41



Department for

Transport

Capital Cost and Business Case

L ey = il}.l:tihit.i.j

NR Capital
NR Capital NR Capital cost incl 30% | Economic
Costincl 30% | costincl 30% || contingency | Business Case
NR Capital | contingency contingency + | + 66% OB on basis of

£m Real May 09 1 2 3

e

e

Option Scope Cost (Em) | (Em) 50% OB (Em) || (Em) Column 4
Paddington to _ No netcostto ||
Oxford, Newbury, | govt in PV | g
GWML 2 Bristol TM, Pk way 297 386 578 640 terms )
Paddington to w
Oxford, Newbury, o
Bristol TM, Pk way high vfm
GWML 3 and Swansea 459 596 894 990 (BCR 2.5 to 3)
St Pancras to No net cost to
Corby, Nottingham, govt in PV

MML Sheffield 332 431 647 1,716 terms %

GWML 3 +
MML 790 1028 1541 1706

*  Costs at GRIP 2-3 detail but not yet formalised in GRIP
. NR 30% contingency validated by QRA (potential upside)

«  50% OB applies at GRIP 2 Taken forward to
»  For prudence 66% OB applied to cash flow cash flow




Department for

Transport

WAG/ DfFT electrification briefing
13t May 2009

Page 43



Department for

Transport

Proposed Scope

GWML & MML Electrification

Key

Biachpool o. :
nEsssess Alrcady eleclified AC u_.._.wm._w.n._... &

saaseaess Alrcady eleclified DC &
Liverpool. Wi

N
et

s e
L g

Thames Valley Branches and Reacing to Newbury

messsssmans  Midland Main Line

e S M;:owmaa to Doncaster, Leeas and Matlock QS.S | m OO _U m

Indicative diversionary routes O._.. ._.._J _ S
s Great Westem Option 1
P - - - SRS A P _Um Umﬁ
s Great Westemn Option 2 increment ___

u mesmsmmsnn  (real \Westerm Option 3 Increment

Eishouard Hatbour -
- P

Pt &mﬁa/..aee
LT N ot
AN 3 Ramsgnts
S
o S
Sassbury :
e i T Hantings
Brhian

Eepar ©

Weymar

Page 44



Department for

T ; Transport
Electrification Benefits (GWML P
example)

+ Passenger Benefits ¢ Industry Benefits
» Capacity ¢ Lower cost railway
— (18% more seats per full length — (Financially positive business case
train than Diesel IEP) to Bristol, high vfm case to
- Train reliability w%&__ﬂmmv_ P duce
_ % i - element o reduce
sl mproverent by 7%/ £120m PV over 20 years)

@

= RS relElIf= londy Lower carbon emissions

« Journey Time _
- (4 :M_sm faster London to — Typically 25 — 30% lower than
diesel equivalent

Swansea) — BUT carbon saving is not material
in business case (0.02% UK)

Reduced track damage costs

(27%)

. Electrification offers a step change in rail delivery and reduced cost on the
busiest routes

+  The optimum time to electrify is when rolling stock is life expired as is the
case on GWML now

Page 45



Department for

Transport

NR Capital Cost and Business Case

£m Real May 09

NR Capital Cost

Option

Scope

(Em)

NR Capital cost +
66% OB (£m)

Business Case on
basis of Column 4

Paddington to Oxford,
Newbury, Bristol TM and

No net cost to govt in

GWML 2 Bristol Parkway 386 640 PV terms
Paddington to Oxford,
Newbury, Bristol TM, Bristol high vfm
GWML 3 Parkway and Swansea 596 990 (BCR 2.5 to 3)
Poor/ Med vfm
Incremental Bristol to (BCR <=1.5
GWML 3a Swansea 210 350 dependent on fleet)
St Pancras to Corby, No net cost to govt in
MML

GWML 3 +
MML

PV terms

(STE

Nottingham, Sheffield

1028

*  Costs at GRIP 2-3 detail but not yet formalised in GRIP

. NR capital cost includes 30%

contingency validated by QRA

. 50% OB applies at GRIP 2 which NR anticipate reaching in July 2010
«  In absence of formal GRIP status 66% OB applied

Page 46



Network Rail Proposed Programme

Electrfication
factory unit

2009
@ Q2 o3 o4

National Grid Lead Time up to 7 years

2010

211

Q) G2 93 &4 @ @z 43 ™

2012
Q1 02 03 o4

2013

Q1 02 03 o4

2014
a1 Q2

23 G4

a1 oz

2015 !

03 G4 I3

G2 G304

018 |

o1 o2 o3

217 _
Qe jo

Department for

Transport

o | g 202

Q2 Q3 34 mu# G2 G3 04 13t Gz 43 o4
|
|

GWHL _
Elactafication IEP Contract .
implementatian Award | | |
| m.m.s.n dasired for _.M® Elee desiad 1..0
EP AV | | lEP o Brstel [ l:m_.U 1] ms.m;mam I
| | N R : —— !
| | [ERTMS infrastructure. ™ .
M . _ sty _||.|. | IEP Delivery
_ /Cssral Period
Crossral works Wv.!mm_._._rmm start |
| | + e i |
Franchiss re- | 1 |
specificatinn i1 i [starts | [ |
| | i |
ML I | _
___
Enabling works | _ Epity pemeing (poonrance works #
i : _ ok |
Electrfication | | |
implementation | |
| = {
Electric trains | |Class 915 available  —-of |
available | 16_4 mna__r | | |
P e |
Resignalling i e 8 |
B .T _ i
Franchize re- hzs,__ franchiss _ 7
specification | _g._nm | |
» The break in GWML installation is to allow both MML and GWML to be

completed to match rolling stock availability dates

Page 47



Department for

Affordability: RAB funding for base ~ "aMPort

programme

£m Nominal CP4 | CP5 | CP6 Total CP4 CP5 CP 6
Option Scope Total | Total | Total 12/13 | 13/14|14/15 1516 16/17 17/18 18/19)19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24
Paddington to Oxford,
Newbury, Bristol TM,
GWML 2 PWay 12 309 353] 1993 1 11 37 62 70 70 70]) 70 71 71 71 71
Paddington to Oxford,
Newbury, Bristol TM,
GWML 3 PWay and Swansea 12] 365] 531] 3006 1 11 38 85 75 86| 101] 106] 106] 106/ 106f 107

Incremental Bristol to
GWML 3 a Swansea 1 56 178] 1013 0 ¢] 2 3 5 16 30 35 36 36 36 36

St Pancras to Corby,

MML Nottingham, Sheffield 0] 204 394f 2232 0 0 1 10 44 71 78 78 79 79 79 79
GWML 2 + MML 12]  513] 747) 4225 1 11 37 73] 113] 141] 148] 149 149] 150 150 180
GWML 3 + MML 12] 569] 925 5238 1 11 39 78] 118 167| 179) 184] 185 185] 186] 186

« RAB funded assuming 6% return, 66% Optimism Bias
« Capital costs only, excludes OLE Maintenance

» Cumulative benefits exceed cumulative costs in CP11/12 i.e. Payback is
2045 to 2055

Page 48



Affordability: Long Term Cash

Flow

Department for

Transport

CP4 CP5 CP6 CP7 CP8 CPg CP10

09/10-14/14 14/15-18/19 19/20-23/24 24/25-28/28 29/30-33/34 34/35-38/39 39/40-43/44
MML
|Infrastructure Costs 0 | -210 | -420 | -430 | -430 | -420 | -390 |
|Operating Cost Savings & Revenue 0f 40 | 230 | 300 | 360 | 430 | 520 |
{Net Impact 0 -170 | -190 | -130 | -70 | 10 | 130 |
GWML OPTION 2 (Bristol)
lInfrastructure Costs -10 | -320 | -350 | -390 | -390 | -380 | -340 |
|Operating Cost Savings & Revenue 0] 90 | 260 | 300 | 360 | 420 | 500 |
[Net Tmpact -10] 230 | ~130 | 90 | 30| 40| 160 |
GWML OPTION 3 (Swansea)
[Rfrastructure Costs 0] 7380 580 | -590 | 590 | 570 | -530 |
|Operating Cost Savings & Revenue 0] 90 | 300 350 | 420 | 490 | 580
[Net Impact ~10] ~290 | 280 | 240 170] 80 50]
INCREMENT (Bristol to Swansea)
|Infrastructure Costs 0] -60 | -190 | -200 | -200 | -190 | -190 |
|Operating Cost Savings & Revenue 0] 0] 40 | 50 | 60 | 70 | 80 |
[Net Impact 0] | 750 | =150 | 140 120 -110]

* Includes OLE Maintenance in Infrastructure Costs
«  Cumulative benefits exceed cumulative costs in CP11/12 i.e. Payback is 2045 to 2055

Page 49



Railway investment on the Great Western Main Line and in Wales

Introduction

On 1% March 2010 | announced the Governments plans for extension of
electrification on the Great Western Main Line (GWML) in England and Wales
and the procurement of a new fleet of trains. | have confirmed Agility Trains
as preferred bidder to deliver a new fleet of trains to take full advantage of the
electrification and to deliver better, faster and more comfortable services
across the route.

In my statement, | committed to deposit a document in the House of
Commons Library setting out the appraisal that assisted the Department in
determining the extent of electrification. Department for Transport officials
have worked extensively with their colleagues in the Welsh Assembly
Government (WAG) to develop the business case for electrification into
Wales.

At a time of significant pressure on public spending, | am determined to
maximise the value of our expenditure. Passenger demand and revenue on
the GWML is high and growing. That is why | have authorised electrification
and the new train fleet.

| believe this investment and other improvements such as that taking place at
Reading station represent a very significant improvement to the GWML for
both passengers and freight customers.

| am very conscious that there has been some disappointment that | have not
been able to commit to electrification between Swansea and Cardiff. In fact,
the electrification of the line to Cardiff and the delivery of the new bi-mode
trains is good news for people travelling to Bridgend, Port Talbot, Neath and
Swansea with better, faster and more comfortable through services. Trains to
London will be 20 minutes faster than today and more capacity will be
provided. These significant improvements will bring Swansea and West
Wales closer to London and Cardiff, help improve connectivity and boost the
local economy.

The policy of the Government is to support a progressive electrification of the
rail network in England and Wales. In conjunction with the Secretary of State
for Wales | will keep under active review the business case for future
electrification of the GWML between Cardiff and Swansea in the light of
developing future service patterns.

Secretary of State for Transport

Page 50



Improvements for passengers

The investment on the GWML delivers electrification between Maidenhead,
Reading, Newbury, Oxford, Bristol and Cardiff along with new trains to
operate long distance plus many regional, local and commuter services.

The GWML has seen significant increases in passenger demand with the
Thames Valley and Greater Bristol both being key growth areas. Between
2000 and 2006 there was 20% increase in passenger numbers between the
Bristol urban area and London. We anticipate significant demand continuing
on the route.

When fully introduced alongside electrification of the route, the Inter City
Express Programme (IEP) will deliver over 8,000 additional seats on services
into Paddington over the peak three hours, representing a 31% increase
compared with today. Trains will operate under electric power for most of
their journeys. The bi-mode capability allows them to operate on new, cleaner
and greener diesel engines over those sections of line that are not electrified,
continuing to provide through services to London often with significantly
reduced journey times.

The appraisal used by the Department for Transport (DfT) assumes the
following indicative service patterns following electrification and the
introduction of new trains. Final service patterns may be different following
future franchise competitions.

Cheltenham & Gloucester

The IEP will be used to increase the frequency of London services to hourly
all day. Cheltenham to London services are expected to be 20 minutes
quicker once the new trains are in service.

Oxford and Newbury

IEP would be deployed on some services alongside other electric trains
providing a significant capacity boost and some journey time reductions. It is
planned that certain new bi-mode services would continue onto the Cotswold
line to Worcester and from Newbury towards Exeter.

Bristol

Services from Bristol Temple Meads to and from London will increase from
two to four trains per hour with new fast trains via Bristol Parkway completing
the journey 22 minutes faster than today. Passengers from Bath can expect a
seven minute reduction in journey time.

Newport and Cardiff

Services to and from London will continue at two trains per hour but with
trains to Cardiff completing the journey 17 minutes faster than today. There
will be a significant increase in capacity. Passengers from Newport and
Cardiff can expect to start using the new trains in December 2016, with
electrification completed and service improvements one year later in 2017.

Page 51



Bridgend, Port Talbot, Neath, Swansea and West Wales

Services between London and Swansea will be 20 minutes faster than today,
completing the journey in two hours and 39 minutes. The bi mode new trains
will switch from electric to diesel power at Cardiff with no journey time penalty.

The investment in electrification and new trains compliments other investment
on the route. The £16bn construction of Crossrail will extend electric train
services from Essex and Central London to Slough, Heathrow and
Maidenhead. The £850 million upgrade of Reading station provides a
significant increase in passenger capacity and allows more room for services
from the west to reach London.

Appraisal of electrification and the new train fleet

A key consideration in considering the extent of electrification is the frequency
of diesel services that can be sensibly converted to electric operation and the
likely growth of passenger demand. Because the infrastructure required for
electrification is expensive, electric train frequency needs to be significant.
Frequency also needs to be high to achieve the maintenance savings from
the train fleet. This is why electrification of London to Oxford, Newbury, Bristol
and Cardiff services is good value for money with some high frequency
electric trains planned on these routes.

The case for electrification to Swansea was examined closely but could not
identify more than one train per hour becoming an electric train. New intercity
diesel trains and the proposed IEP bi-mode trains can achieve the same
journey times as electric trains and consequently there would be no
passenger benefits from electrification between Cardiff and Swansea. The
new bi-mode trains will be able to accelerate quickly from the intermediate
stations, curves and junctions on the route. They will switch seamlessly from
electric to diesel operation when they leave Cardiff.

Network Rail has estimated that electrification between Cardiff and Swansea
would cost £62m. It was found that, for a service of one train every hour in
the off peak period, the business case was weak. There was no evidence of a
pattern of demand that would lead to an imminent need to increase this
frequency. Cardiff electrification by contrast will be used by four trains per
hour, consisting of two from London and two regional services from Bristol.

Further ways in which to improve the case for electrification to Swansea were
looked at, by examining whether other diesel services on this section could be
converted to electric operation. However, significant changes were needed
that would have required passengers to change trains, sometimes more often
than once. The alternatives would also have increased train crew and rolling
stock requirements.

A bi-mode operation to Swansea also assists with the resilience of intercity

services to South Wales both during the period electrification is installed
between Bristol and Cardiff and at times of service disruption. There are

Page 52



occasions when the Severn Tunnel needs to be closed entirely in order that
essential maintenance takes place. The alternative route (via Gloucester) will
not be electrified and requires bi mode type trains to maintain the through
South Wales — London service at these times.

To ensure this route is resilient, DfT is working with Network Rail to re-double
the line between Swindon and Kemble by 2015. It was singled as an economy
measure some 30 years ago. The approval for this scheme was given in the
Budget speech on 23" March. This scheme will improve this diversionary
route with more capacity for South Wales trains. The work would be ahead of
the main electrification activity on the route via the Severn Tunnel when some
disruption to passenger services is likely. From 2016 onwards services will
use the new bi-mode fleet to maintain good through links between South
Wales and London.

The results of the appraisal work is shown in Appendix ‘A’, which shows the
business case for IEP trains and electrification between London and Cardiff
(with bi-mode trains through to Swansea) and the incremental case for
electrification on to Swansea and the deployment off all electric IEP trains on
the Swansea trains.

Because the measurable outputs in terms of journey times and capacity are
the same for Swansea in both cases, the additional value from electrification
is limited to the change from diesel to electric mode of traction, with
environmental benefits and reduced operating costs for those trains which
extend to Swansea. Thus, the overall Benefit to Cost Ratio (BCR) for the
incremental electrification is very poor (0.1).

Conclusions and next steps

DfT has now resumed the procurement of the IEP trains with the proposal that
Agility Trains has put forward as preferred bidder. DfT will now work with
Agility Trains with a view to reaching financial close by the end of 2011.

Over the course of the next six years, Network Rail will electrify the GWML.

Passengers in Oxford, Newbury, Swindon, Bath and Bristol will enjoy the
benefits of electrification and the new trains in the first stage, with Newport,
Cardiff and Swansea passengers enjoying the benefits shortly afterwards.

Network Rail has been asked to work closely with the train operators in
mitigating the disruptive impacts of electrification work.

In the course of the examination of the case for electrification, it was
established that, at an initial high level, there appears to be a good case for
electrifying the key valley commuter lines north of Cardiff via Pontypridd and
Caerphilly as well as the lines to Penarth and Barry Island. We will now work
with the Welsh Assembly Government to develop a full business case.
Provided the earlier findings are confirmed, there is then the possibility
electrification of the Cardiff valley lines could take place during the next rail
investment control period beginning in 2014.

Page 53



In conjunction with WAG, we will also keep under active review the business
case for future electrification of the GWML between Cardiff and Swansea in
the light of developing future service patterns.

Page 54



Appendix A. Details of economic case

Electrification London
to Cardiff and Bi- | Electrification Cardiff to
Mode IEP trains to | Swansea and IEP Electric
Swansea Trains to Swansea*
(a) Time Benefits 470 0
(b) Crowding Benefits 550 0
(c) Highway User Benefits 605 0
(d) Environment Benefits 110 5
(e) Other Benefits * 160 0
(1) User Benefits ( atb+c+d+e) 1895 5
(f) Rail Revenue 1075 0
(g) Operating Costs 1270 -20
(h) Infrastructure Costs 555 65
(2) DfT Financial Impacts (f-g-h) -750 -45
| (3) Non DfT Financial Impacts | -200 I
[NPV (1) +(2) + (3) | 945 -40
| BCR(1)/-[(2) + (3)] | 2.0 | 0.1

Notes

HM Treasury’s ‘Green Book’ on the Appraisal and Valuation in Central
Government sets down clear standards for the economic appraisal of
spending and policies by Government departments. WebTAG is the DfT’s
transport specific guidance. BCR calculations are compliant with these
documents.

“User benefits” takes account of attributes such as time benefits arise from
faster journeys for customers, crowding benefits arise from more capacity
being provided and other benefits include reduced noise and increased
quality benefits arising from the conversion from diesel to electric traction
“DfT Financial Impacts” takes account of revenue generated by the
investment and the operating and infrastructure costs incurred such as the
capital costs of electrification.

Figures presented are discounted £m 2002-03 prices

Figures are rounded to nearest £5m

Figures assume a cap in rail demand growth in 2032-33

BCRs are calculated from unrounded figures

* Figures represent incremental benefits and costs of electrification Cardiff to
Swansea compared to the Bi-Mode operation between Cardiff and Swansea,
with GWML electrification extending from London to Cardiff only.

Page 55



	Agenda
	2 Ministerial Scrutiny Session : Regeneration ( 9:30 -10:15)
	3 Ministerial Scrutiny Session : European Programmes ( 10:15 - 11:00)
	4 Ministerial Scrutiny Session : Business, Enterprise, Technology and Science ( 11:00 - 12:00)
	5 Papers to Note
	EBC(4)-02-11 Paper 5 - Carl Sargeant Minister for Local Government and Communities re Enterprise and Business Committee meeting on 13 July
	EBC(4)-02-11 Paper 5 Annex A
	EBC(4)-02-11 Paper 5 Annex B


